
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

JOINT MUSEUMS COMMITTEE 

 
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 

 

 

 

 Date: Tuesday, 7th June, 2022 

 Time: 10.00 am 

 Venue: 
 

The Commandery 

 
 



2 

JOINT MUSEUMS COMMITTEE  
 

Information for Members of the Public 
 
Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public. You have the right to inspect copies of 

Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the 

preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. Part II 

of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is anticipated that 

the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background papers are open to 

public inspection. 

 

Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to report 

on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording and 

providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the 

proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the 

attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing to 

attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or recorded and 

for any footage to be broadcast or published.  

 

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed 

for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the 

Agenda. Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 p.m. on the last working day 

before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below. 

 

If you have any queries about this Agenda or require any details of background papers, further 

documents or information please refer to the Officer Contact shown. Enquiries of a general nature can 

be addressed to Margaret Johnson, Democratic Services Administrator, Democratic and Civic Services, 

Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY Telephone: 01905 722085. E-Mail Address: 

committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk. 

 

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic 

minority languages. Please contact the above named officer for further information. 

 

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also 

available electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website 

Address: worcester.gov.uk 

 

 



3 

Joint Museums Committee 
Tuesday, 7 June 2022 

 

Members of the Committee:- 

 

 
 

Councillor Patricia Agar (LCo) 
Councillor Mrs. Lucy Hodgson (C) 

 

Councillor Andy Roberts (C) 
Councillor Marcus Hart (C) 

 

  
C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative  

LD = Liberal Democrat 

 
AGENDA 

 
Part 1 

(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC) 
 
1. Appointment of Substitutes  

 To receive details of any Members appointed to attend the meeting instead of a 
Member of the Committee. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of interest. 
 

3. Public Participation  

 Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be allowed, each speaker being allocated a 
maximum of five minutes, for members of the public to present a petition, ask a 

question or comment on any item on the Agenda or within the remit of the 
Committee. 
 

4. Minutes  

 Of the meetings held on 3rd March 2022 and 13th April 2022 to be approved and 
signed.  (To follow). 

 

5. Election of Chair  

 To elect a Chair for the ensuing year.  (The Museums Shared Services Agreement 

stipulates that the position of Chair should be alternated between members 
representing different authorities.  Therefore the Chair should be a representative 
of Worcestershire County Council). 

 

6. Appointment of Vice-Chair  

 To appoint a Vice-Chair for the ensuing year.  (The Museums Shared Services 

Agreement stipulates that the position of Chair should be alternated between 
members representing different authorities.  Therefore the Vice-Chair should be a 
representative of Worcester City Council). 

 



4 

 
 

7. Museums Worcestershire Annual Review and Performance in 2021-2022  

Page(s): 1 - 28 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Philippa Tinsley, Museums Manager 
Tel: 01905 25371 

 1. That the Joint Museums Committee approves the Museums Worcestershire 

Annual Review for 2021-22; and 

2. That the Joint Museums Committee note the information provided regarding 

performance in 2021-22 compared to previous years. 

8. Quarter 4 Finance Report 2021-2022  

Page(s): 29 - 32 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Mark Baldwin, Head of Finance 
Tel: 01905 722007 

 That the Joint Museums Committee reviews the financial monitoring details 
including budget variances for the 4th quarter ended 31st March 2122. 

 

9. City Museums Development  

Page(s): 33 - 36 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Philippa Tinsley, Museums Manager 
Tel: 01905 25371 

 That the Joint Museums Committee note the progress on planned developments at 
the City Museums. 
 

10. Joint Museums Committee Work Programme  

Page(s): 37 - 38 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Philippa Tinsley, Museums Manager 
Tel: 01905 25371 

 That the Joint Museums Committee note its future work programme and consider 

whether there are any additional matters it would wish to be incorporated. 
 

11. Any Other Business  

 Which in the opinion of the Chair is of sufficient urgency as to warrant 
consideration. 
 



 
 

 

 
 

Report to: Joint Museums Committee, 7th June 2022 
 

Report of: Museums Manager 
 

 
Subject: MUSEUMS WORCESTERSHIRE ANNUAL REVIEW, AND PERFORMANCE 

IN 2021-22 
 
1. Recommendation 

 
1.1 That the Joint Museums Committee approves the Museums Worcestershire 

Annual Review for 2021-22, and 
 

1.2 That the Joint Museums Committee note the information provided regarding 
performance in 2021-22 compared to previous years. 

2 Background 

 
2.2 The Joint Museums Service Agreement requires the presentation of an annual report 

or review to the Joint Committee at its annual meeting. The proposed Annual Review 
for 2021-22 is appended to this report as an appendix. 

2.3 The appended summary of annual performance indicators also give an account of 

progress in delivering the work programme against service priorities and targets 
throughout. This performance data is used by Museums Worcestershire’s 

management team to shape the priorities of upcoming work. 

 
3 Information  

 
3.2 The intention is to circulate the Annual Review to the key partners and stakeholders, 

as well as publishing the report on the museum’s services website 
www.museumsworcestershire.org.uk. The report will also be circulated to all City and 
County Councillors. 

3.3 Some of the key points on performance in 2021-22 to note are: 

 Recovery across the heritage and cultural sector has been slow, with visitor 

research by the Audience Agency, and performance at the Association of 
Leading Attractions (ALVA) sites showing visitors returning at lower than pre-
pandemic numbers. ALVA sites that were predominately outdoors saw 17% 

fewer visitors in 2021 than in 2019; the major national museums and galleries 
had 73% fewer visitors in 2021 than 2019. The Audience Agency research 

found that people tend to be visiting closer to home and the main motivator 
was to spend time with others in a sociable setting.  

  

Page 1 Agenda Item 7

http://www.museumsworcestershire.org.uk/


 
 

 

Worcestershire’s museums were able to offer visitors the right experiences 
and so visit numbers were only slightly down on 2019 as a whole, despite all 

sites still being in lockdown in April and May 2021. Some months, particularly 
during school holidays and when offering special events and exhibitions, saw 
record numbers, even when visitors were carefully managed in order to 

minimise Covid risks. As a result the economic impact of our museums on the 
local economy was increased from all previous years, nearly reaching 

£2million. 

 Educational visits were slow initially but then returned rapidly from the 
autumn 2021 onwards. It’s interesting to see that at The Commandery and 

Hartlebury, returning schools have been predominately KS2 (older primary-
aged children), and this perhaps reflects a long-term change that we will 

continue to review. The Art Gallery, however, saw a real broadening of its 
formal education offer following some active piloting of work for Early Years 

children and closer linking with exhibitions. This will develop further over the 
next year as we aim to maximise the opportunities of the temporary exhibition 
programme. 

YouGov polling earlier this year showed that young adults were least likely to 
say that democracy was serving them well. The Commandery’s new 

Democracy learning session was launched this year and was very popular with 
schools and we aim to develop this further in years to come so that 
Worcestershire’s young people can feel more involved and able to influence 

decision-makers. 

 This was the first year where we regularly surveyed visitors and event 

participants using the UCL wellbeing framework to assess the health impact of 
a museum visit. Overall a visit or participation improved an individual’s 
wellbeing by 14% on average, and the impact of the surveyed sessions has 

enabled us to learn more about where our resources can have the most 
impact for residents. It was particularly motivating to see that participants in 

the Holiday Activity & Food programme (all local children eligible for free 
school meals) showed significant increase in wellbeing by taking part in the 
sessions – several started the day with very unhappy scores, but almost all 

left scoring their happiness levels at the maximum level. 

 Partnership opportunities were able to resume properly, with a Covid-benedit 

that our experience and facilities for video discussions makes partnership 
working easier for the future. The Skyscape exhibition at Worcester Art 
Gallery included partnerships with local photographers and the University of 

Worcester Fine Art department, and members of the museum team and staff 
from the British Museum were able to participate in a knowledge exchange, 

with skills sharing happening both ways and feeding into collections and 
activities research. 

3.3 Important milestones have been achieved in 2021-22, preparing the service for the 

future. The fundraising charity Worcestershire Heritage, Art & Museums is registered 
and up and running, and its first major donation has been received from Professor 

Olsen. Townsfunding has been allocated to develop the City’s museums through the 
‘Heritage & Riverside’ project, representing a new phase in the development of The 
Commandery, and the start of development to improve the City’s collection displays 

and facilities at the Art Gallery & Museum. 

Page 2



 
 

 

4 Implications 
 

4.2 Financial and Budgetary Implications 
Activity highlighted within the Annual Review 2021-22 was funded from the annual 

agreed core budget and just under £300,000 of work that were externally funded.  

4.3 Legal and Governance Implications 
There are no legal and governance implications to this report. 

4.4 Risk Implications 

Risks of Museums Worcestershire’s work are assessed and monitored using both 

authorities’ risk management procedures and systems.  

4.5 Corporate/Policy Implications 

There are no corporate or policy implications to this report. 

4.6 Equality Implications 

There are no identified equality implications to this report. 

4.7 Human Resources Implications 

There are no human resources implications to this report. 

4.8 Health and Safety Implications 
There are no health and safety implications to this report. 

4.9 Social, Environmental and Economic Implications 

There are no negative social, environmental and economic implications to the 

highlighted work. The Annual Review 2020-21 contains information on positive 

impacts of museums’ work. 

 

 

 
 
 

Ward(s):   All wards 
Contact Officer: Philippa Tinsley, Tel: 01905 25371, Email: 

Philippa.tinsley@worcester.gov.uk 
Appendices:  Appendix 1: Draft 21-22 Annual Review 

Appendix 2: Performance 2021-22 

  

Page 3

mailto:Philippa.tinsley@worcester.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Museums Worcestershire Annual Review 2021-2022 

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 1



Museums Worcestershire is a partnership between 
Worcester City Council and Worcestershire County Council. 

 
 

Museums Worcestershire in 2021-22 

 Relevant – Visitors returned to their museums 

quickly after lockdown, with all venues having bumper visitor 
months by the summer, bucking the national trend and 
bringing £1.9million of secondary spend to Worcestershire 

 Ambitious – To move forward with recovery and 

development projects, we successfully bid for £294k of 
external funding and launched a new fund-raising charity 

 Dedicated – We continued to support our 

communities including care home residents, looked after 
children and those eligible for free school meals 
 

 “To be able to welcome back our visitors after lockdown with 
such a poignant and thought-provoking exhibition was really 
special for us.”  

Claire Cheshire, Curator of the Titanic exhibition 

“Brilliant – I felt very safe with Covid precautions and the 
displays were wonderful. I loved it.”  

Commandery visitor 
 
 
Image shows Learning Co-ordinator Su conducting a Suitcase Stories 
session with the aid of a screen to protect care home residents  
during the pandemic.  

P
age 6



Our Museums - The Commandery 
 
Highlights 

 August Bank Holiday activities saw visitor numbers higher than pre-
pandemic levels and Halloween tours had their most successful year yet 

 Theatre in the garden returned with Worcester Theatres’ Elsie and Norm’s 
Macbeth 

 A new Murder Mystery evening event received great feedback and 
attracted new visitors 

 Trialled pre-booked sessions for families during February half term. 

 Launched a new school session focusing on the history of democracy and 
Worcester’s important contribution 

 Co-ordinated holiday sessions for local children eligible for free school 
meals 

 Hosted Worcester City Council ‘Volunteer thank you’ celebrations. 
 
Improving the visitor experience 

 A new costume room for visitors to enjoy dressing up as characters from the 
Commandery’s past 

 Picnic blankets and deckchairs to enable visitors to relax in the 
Commandery gardens 

 New Visitor Welcome volunteers help deliver great customer service and 
interpret the building for visitors.  

 

“Very good indeed!  The reception guide is keen, enthusiastic, and knowledgeable, very helpful and kind too. Exhibits well-presented and 
interesting. Café good and reasonably priced, very clean.” 

“Our 7-year-old has loved learning about the civil war – he especially loved the dressing up and trying to lift the real pike! I first came here 
at about his age, so it’s been wonderful to come back.”   Visitors to The Commandery 

P
age 7



 
“We were delighted with the experience. We were greeted at the entrance by a very friendly and helpful member of staff and the 
museum was extremely well organised with Covid safety measures in place throughout. A great visit and will definitely be returning for 
future events!”  Visitor to Titanic Honour & Glory exhibition at Worcester Art Gallery & Museum  

P
age 8



Our Museums - Worcester Art Gallery & Museum 
 
Exhibition highlights 

 The hugely popular Titanic Honour & Glory exhibition led to the busiest May and June on record 

 A successful programme of Covid-safe events saw the return of in-person Museum after Hours and Bite Size Talks 

 New family trails and intimate Gallery Tours were designed to cater for new audiences that emerged over the pandemic 

 Substantial press, media and local excitement greeted the display of the Queen of Your Hometown costume worn by Worcester’s 
Ginny Lemon on RuPaul’s Drag Race TV show. Ginny Lemon has kindly donated the costume to the County Museum collection 
where it joins costumes worn by Vesta Tilley. 

 
Improving the visitor experience 

 Upgraded environmental monitoring means we can continue to bring to Worcester significant works from national collections, such 
as the outstanding Skyscape exhibition with loans from the Ashmolean Museum 

 Alongside other Covid-precautions, new HEPA air filters gave our visitors the confidence to return and enjoy the exhibitions. 
 

“Today I popped over to @museumsworcestershire to check out the iconic look from the Queen of my Hometown @ginnylemon69 
Serving Worcestershire Sauce realness in homage to the original King of music hall Vesta Tilley. It’s amazing to see queer representation 
in my local community”  Visitor to the Art Gallery & Museum via social media 

“World class exhibition. Well presented, excellent information. Thank you for bringing this to Worcester”  Visitor to Skyscape exhibition  

P
age 9



Our Museums - Worcestershire County Museum 
at Hartlebury Castle 
 
Highlights  

 New exhibition Captivating Costume opened featuring highlights from the 
county’s superlative costume collection 

 Pre-booked event days were very popular with several sold out 

 Successful trial of a free Museum introductory talk for visitors was well 
received and will now be a regular offer 

 Heritage Open Days welcomed over 1300 people. 
 
Improving the visitor experience 

 Enhanced activities for children include an interactive dolls house and a 
Hartlebury Hat display 

 Introduction of an illustrated Family Guide to the museum 

 New additions to the outstanding Gypsy caravan collection include the 
Vardo Ethelinda, and a new display of scale-model vehicles handmade by 
volunteer Ced Lewis. 

 
 

 “Absolutely superb. Brought my 84-year-old mum who loved the 1950s 
exhibition – many happy memories of her youth and courting days with my dad, 
who sadly died last year. Wonderful afternoon.” 

“So great stepping back in time. Guides super helpful and friendly. Thank you for 
being wheelchair friendly for my daughter too.”  

Visitors to Worcestershire County Museum at Hartlebury Castle 
 

P
age 10



“Wonderful, helped me make amazing memories with someone I care for very much.”   Visitor to Worcestershire County Museum  

P
age 11



Supporting our Communities’ Recovery 
 
“Starting during lockdown and then through reopening we have trialled several pilot projects. The learning from these pilots will feed into 
the longer-term development of our sites and reinforces our commitment to make a difference in our communities”  

Laura Hines, Learning Operations Supervisor 
 

 Suitcase Stories, the third phase of an intergenerational project using reminiscence to work with those living with dementia, was 
successfully completed in December 2021. The three phases have brought in £200,000 of funding, reached over 1000 participants 
and worked with 36 artists. Our results have been shared with over 300,000 supporters and fellow professionals online 

 Thanks to funding from the Holiday Activities and Food programme, we delivered 176 summer and winter sessions for local children 
eligible for free school meals, ensuring they had fun, a great lunch and encouraging them to get involved with their local heritage 

 An early-years project, in partnership with Worcestershire Children First and a local nursery, gave very young children time to 
explore the Art Gallery & Museum through arts-based workshops 

 We partnered with Sight Concern to deliver workshops for children with visual impairments and their families.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

P
age 12



Hand in Hand with our Communities 
 
City and County collections have been at the heart of community engagement and consultation through the John Ellerman funded Vardo 
project, Esmee Fairbairn funded Glove Affair project, and working with diverse communities including our county’s Gypsy, Roma & 
Traveller community, looked after children, and newly-arrived refugees from Afghanistan. 
 

A Glove Affair – reaching out 

 Reflects our commitment to increase access and make a 
difference for a wide audience with underutilised museum 
collections 

 Advances this year include public-focused interpretation and 
piloting workshops with underrepresented audiences 

 The collection has been researched using the words of 
Worcester people and sessions have been developed in a 
manner that is approachable by groups that either cannot or do 
not engage with history, heritage or art 

 We have fostered partnerships with community organisations, 
establishing beneficial relationships that can be developed in 
the future 

 Most recently the project has worked with refugees fleeing the 
war in Ukraine. 

 

“Glove Affair joined the Loneliness and Isolation Group, headed up by 
Worcestershire County Council, and has taken an active part in 
exchanging ideas on how to help combat chronic isolation.”  

David Nash, Social History Curator 
  

P
age 13



Those Who Helped Us Support Local Recovery 
 
We were really pleased to welcome our dedicated volunteers back to the museums: total number of volunteer hours given 1,958  
 
At The Commandery volunteers have given over 280 hours supporting events, visitor welcome and gardening 
Volunteers have also been able to add to the school experience by taking groups around the building for a Civil War tour. 
 
“It was great to have the volunteers take the children round the self-led tour. The children really enjoyed the day.”  

Primary School Teacher 
 

A huge thank you to all our volunteers, who contribute significantly to all our museums 
 

Thanks also to our partners who have helped us to 
support our communities: 

 The Art Gallery & Museum hosted the Heritage 
Lottery funded Worcester Life Stories 
exhibition, part of a partnership project 
between Worcester City Council and the NHS, 
which puts those people living with dementia 
and their families, at its heart 

 Our partnership with the Hartlebury Castle 
Preservation Trust continues to support the 
vision of a unified visitor attraction with 
regional and national appeal 

 Culture Recovery Funding from the 
Department of Culture, Media & Sport via Arts 
Council England supported us to test new ways 
of reaching audiences as recovery from 
lockdowns progressed.  

P
age 14



Supporting Heritage Recovery - Digital Connections 
 

 Learning materials created during the pandemic have helped to strengthen our pool of digital resources for education partners 

 Followers increased by 15% across social media channels 

 The audience for the Research Worcestershire blog doubled over the pandemic 

 A dedicated webpage supports the digital training resources and films created by the teams at Museums Worcestershire and 
Worcestershire Archive and Archaeology Service as part of the Historic England funded No one Left Behind project. Practical training 
in areas such as exhibition planning, income generation, marketing and volunteer recruitment originally designed to support the 
heritage sector in Worcestershire recover after the pandemic is now benefitting organisations and individuals wherever they may 
be based. 

 
 

“We are really grateful for 
your continued interest in the 
wellbeing of all museums and 
heritage centres in the 
county. We really don't feel 
left behind!”  

Recipient of support from the 
No One Left Behind project  

P
age 15



Museum Collections 
 

 Artist Kurt Jackson generously donated a painting from 
his 2021 Art Gallery & Museum exhibition, with the work 
being selected by front-line staff 

 The City’s significant British Impressionists collection was 
augmented by the acquisition of work by Paul Nash, 
Augustus John, and James Abbott McNeill Whistler, with 
support from the Museum Members 

 Conservation to the city’s samurai armour, funded by 
Weston Loan with the Art Fund and with support from 
the Museum Members, was carried out ready for its 
display in the 2022 exhibition Hokusai’s Great Wave: 
Reflections of Japan 

 Conservation of 16 specimens collected during the 
nineteenth century voyage of HMS Challenger alongside 
cleaning conservation of a pair of terrestrial and 
astrological globes from the County’s Tickenhill collection 
have meant that the objects could all be displayed in the 
Skyscape and Return to Oceania exhibitions. 

 
 

Museums Worcestershire on tour 
 The much-loved Chadding on Mounts Bay by Stanhope Forbes travelled to Penlee House for their Discovering Anchor Studio 

exhibition 

 Dame Laura Knight’s The Yellow Dress was displayed at the Milton Keynes Gallery as part of a major retrospective of Knight’s work 

 Canal, Hill, Rail by Carol Rhodes was included in the Butterfly Effect exhibition at Midlands Art Centre 

 The Ice Age exhibition went on tour to Museum in the Park in Stroud 
 

The City and County’s collections on tour have been seen by more than 75,000 people.  

P
age 16



Learning 
 

 As lockdowns ended, the learning team continued to deliver online 
wellbeing sessions, online workshops for schools and distributed 
activity bags through local food banks 

 Since reopening in May 2022, we have welcomed almost 2,500 
children from 98 schools to the museums 

 Home Educator sessions returned quickly to the Art Gallery & Museum 
after lockdown with activities including the creation of a fish from 
recycled materials which featured in the Return to Oceania exhibition 

 Online work experience modules received over 750 views, enabling 
young people to gain valuable support with their career planning that 
they would have otherwise missed 

 Two students from the University of Worcester joined the 
Commandery for work experience. They researched and developed a 
talk about its history as the School for the Blind, helped with events 
and created resources for family activities.  

 
 
“The children were engaged and learnt a lot from each session because they 
were interactive and visual. Perfect for their learning.”  

Year 5 Teacher 

“The opportunity for work experience provided by the Commandery has 
been valuable in terms of gaining an insight into the heritage sector.”  

Beth, University of Worcester Student 
 
  

P
age 17



Museums Worcestershire Leading the Way 
 
Two staff spent time with British Museum teams and later hosted a British Museum member of staff in Worcester, as part of the 
Knowledge Exchange programme which offers staff the opportunity to share knowledge, skills and best practice.  
 
Our Registrar, who has a specialism in World Cultures, had a digital exchange with the Oceania team at the British Museum as part of the 
research into Worcester’s significant collection, exhibited in the Return to Oceania exhibition at the Art Gallery & Museum. 
 
“I just wanted to say such a huge thank you for last week’s Knowledge Exchange… You are setting the standard for what museums should 
be like – educational, engaging and most importantly fun! I had such a fantastic week and really look forward to continuing the links with 
Museums Worcestershire.” 

Celine Nonde, Membership and Supporter Events Coordinator, The British Museum 
 

 
Georgie Stevens is the Vardo Project Curatorial Officer, based at the County 
Museum and its nationally significant collection of Gypsy Vardos. The project aims 
to build histories, knowledge, community relationships and engagement, and 
educate visitors about the Gypsy, Roma & Traveller community and its culture with 
the aim of dispelling myths and challenging negative stereotypes.  
 
Georgie comes from a Romani background and was brought up with the knowledge 
of traditions, crafts and skills embedded within Romani culture.  
 
As well as learning more about the County’s collection, Georgie has advised and 
supported other museums about their interpretation of GRT collections. These 
wider networks will help us uncover more context to the collection and raise its 
national profile.  

P
age 18



Building Resilience 
 
We continue to diversify income streams to build the service’s resilience.  

 The Commandery saw their best year for weddings so far 

 A brand-new cafe, Little Al’s at the Balcony, opened at the Art Gallery & Museum in January 2022. They have already won Visit 
Worcestershire’s Sustainable Tourism award and promise to be a real favourite with visitors 

 Another strong year for Commandery Coffee as visitors attracted to the lovely canal-side garden during lockdown continue to 
return. The installation of a new accessible toilet/baby change next to the café enables the operators to open independent of the 
museum opening hours, giving them new opportunities to build their business 

 Both cafes support local suppliers and are committed to sustainable practices 

 A new ticketing system swiftly put in place for reopening, continues to enable pre-booking for popular events meaning our loyal 
visitors can secure their place 

 Sourcing and displaying a wider range of products has led to an increase in spend per head at both City Museum shops. 
  

P
age 19



Worcestershire Heritage, Art & Museums Registered Charity 
 
“As a long-term resident of the city, I am very keen to support the Art Gallery & Museum’s development by helping to build a superlative 
art collection, which in turn will enhance the cultural life of Worcester.”  

Professor Rolf Olsen, donor 
 

A new fund-raising charity (registration number 1197448) was launched to support the work of Museums Worcestershire and has 
received its first donation, from Worcester philanthropist Professor Rolf Olsen.  
 
The donation will be used to purchase new works of art and lay the foundations for a new gallery within the Foregate Street building for 
the City’s art collection. 
 
The new Charity is independent of Museums Worcestershire’s funding Councils, overseen by a group of trustees. 
  

Worcestershire Heritage, Art & 

Museum Trustees with the 

Museums Manager 

P
age 20



Looking Forward 

 

 Working in partnership with 
Worcester City Council on significant 
developments at The Commandery 
and the Art Gallery & Museum 
funded by the Towns Fund 
 

 An ambitious programme of 
exhibitions welcomes Hokusai’s Great 
Wave, Tolkien and Canaletto to the 
Art Gallery & Museum 
 

 A focus on the outstanding Vardo 
collection at the County Museum to 
learn more about the collections and 
improve the transport gallery and its 
interpretation, hand-in-hand with the 
community 
 

 Working with our partner charity to 
acquire significant pieces for the City’s 
art collection, including some key 
fundraising campaigns. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 21



 
 
 

 

“It is remarkable how Museums Worcestershire quickly pivoted to find new ways of working 
during the pandemic and are now building on this to take the service forward. 

 
Hard work and focus has led to swift recovery, but not at the expense of partners or 

communities, who remain at the forefront of the service’s work and ambitions” 
 

Councillor Lucy Hodgson, Chair of the Joint Museums Committee 2021-22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Thank you  to all our visitors, our governing Councils, and all our funders for enabling us to build on new ways of working  

during the pandemic; to move forward and support our communities and partners during this period of recovery. 
 

Thank you  to the Museums Worcestershire team who pour their enthusiasm, knowledge and dedication  

into welcoming visitors and working alongside our communities. 

 

P
age 22



Appendix 2: Performance 2021-22          Page 1 

 

PERFORMANCE 

  2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 

Number of visitors Worcester City Art Gallery & Museum 56,543 67,821 12,756 52,161 

Retail income £25,900 £22,444 £6,764 £22,403 

Café income £0 £4,334 £0 £339 

 

Number of visitors The Commandery 16,111 13,285 2,923 12,582 

Admissions income (incl schools) £42,738 £34,171 £9,866 £45,681 

Retail income £13,218 £9,117 £384 £9,761 

Café income £4,895 £5,546 £10,623 £17,373 

Room hire income £12,502 £5,109 £0 £11,490 

 

Number of visitors Hartlebury Castle 19,627 18,809 5,790 18,516 

Admissions income (incl schools) £49,801 £47,788 £9,245 £41,850 

 

Website sessions (users) 

283,645 
(page views - roughly 
equivalent to 94,548 

users) 

95,794 78,420 151,596 

Social media followers New PI 21,021 

Children and young people engaging as part of formal education programme 5,498 5,804 1,275 8,062 

Learning resource loans  119 228 39 121 

Number of learners engaged in informal education programme, adults and children  4,816 5,189 3,228 5,876 

Number of volunteer hours contributed 3,975 3,942 2,479 1,958 

Average improvement in wellbeing experienced by museum visitors New PI 14% 

 

Number of objects newly on display, City collection 205 170 53 57 

Number of objects newly on display, County collection 146 12 0 50 

Number of objects lent to other venues 55 27 47 35 

Visitor numbers at those venues 740,000 45,700 8,077 76,055 

  

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 2



Appendix 2: Performance 2021-22          Page 2 

 

SATISFACTION  

 

Both authorities included questions about satisfaction with the area’s cultural facilities that are relevant to museums in their 2021 residents’ survey. As this is the first year 

for Worcestershire County Council in this format, no trend data is yet available. 
 

WORCESTER CITY COUNCIL Satisfied Neither satisfied or dissatisfied Dissatisfied 

 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019 

Arts and cultural activities and facilities 
(Guildhall, Commandery and Museum & Art 
Gallery)* 

63.37% 61.89% 67.88% 24.07% 24.91% 24.35% 12.55% 13.21% 7.77% 

 

 

WORCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  2021 

BOTH SERVICE USERS AND NON-USERS 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with each of the following services provided or supported by 

Worcestershire County Council?: Museums/galleries 

Very satisfied 13% 

Fairly satisfied 36% 

Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied 43% 

Fairly dissatisfied 4% 

Very dissatisfied 3% 

Satisfied 50% 

Dissatisfied  7% 

SERVICE USERS ONLY 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with each of the following services provided or supported by 

Worcestershire County Council?: Museums/galleries 

Very satisfied 17% 

Fairly satisfied 48% 

Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied 30% 

Fairly dissatisfied 4% 

Very dissatisfied 1% 

Satisfied 66% 

Dissatisfied  5% 

 

  

P
age 24



Appendix 2: Performance 2021-22          Page 3 

 

FORMAL EDUCATION REACH PROFILE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20-21 Covid performance (no physical visits) for comparison 

  

HARTLEBURY   

 2019-20 2021-22 

Foundation 3% 0 

KS1 74% 46% 

KS2 21% 51% 

KS3 0 3% 

KS4 0 0 

KS5 0 0 

SEND 2% 0 

ART GALLERY   

 2019-20 2021-22 

Foundation 0 11% 

KS1 13% 27% 

KS2 29% 6% 

KS3 3% 7% 

KS4 0 14% 

KS5 0 6% 

SEND 9% 6% 

UNIVERSITY 23% 8% 

HOME ED 23% 15% 

COMMANDERY   

  2019-20 2021-22 

Foundation 0 0 

KS1 1% 1% 

KS2 52% 75% 

KS3 45% 23% 

KS4 0 0 

KS5 2% 1% 

HOME ED 0 1% 

FORMAL 
EDUCATION 

Online and 
outreach 

  2020-21 

Foundation 0 

KS1 37% 

KS2 43% 

KS3 0 

KS4 0 

KS5 16% 

HOME ED 4% 

P
age 25



Appendix 2: Performance 2021-22          Page 4 

 

ECONOMIC IMPACT OF MUSEUMS ON THE LOCAL COMMUNITY  

 

Visits to Museums Worcestershire museums brought in additional off-site local spend of: 

Art Gallery & Museum £1,082,181 

The Commandery £333,356 

Hartlebury Castle £419,062 

Total Economic Impact from Museums Worcestershire’s Museums in 2021-22 = £1,934,599 

 

Past performance for comparison:  

Economic Impact of Museums Worcestershire Visits in 2020-21 = £338,111 

Economic Impact of Museums Worcestershire Visits in 2018-19 = £1,492,900 

 

 

Calculated using visitor numbers and data from Audience Finder.  

Note, no 21-22 breakdown of visitor type is available, so this data is extrapolated from previous years. 

 

Example of methodology from Association of Independent Museums (in widespread sector usage) is shown below: 

Museum Number of visitors 
2021/22 

How many visitors 
were adults 

% adults visitors are 
local* 

% adult visitors are 
day trippers** 

% adult visitors are 
overnight visitors *** 

Total 

Hartlebury Castle 17,274 76% 65% 31% 5%  

Offsite spend in local area 
per each adult visit 

      

LOCAL - £22.13   £188,797    

DAY TRIPPER - £44.25    £180,083   

OVERNIGHT - £76.45     £50,182  

      £419,062 

 

*Travel time of 29 minutes or less; **Travel time of 30 – 180 minutes; ***Travel time 3 hours and over 

P
age 26



Appendix 2: Performance 2021-22    
    
  Page 5 

 

CITY MUSEUM COLLECTION ACQUISITIONS 2021-22 

Accession 
Number  

Object Nature of 
Acquisition 

2021.1 River Landscape by BW Leader, framed oil painting on canvas  Gift 

2021.2 Brewdog 330ml beer can Barnard Castle Eye Test Hazy Durham IPA collected along 
with contextual information about how political news became stronger during the 
pandemic, and the symbolism of missing visiting family – Covid Collection 

Gift 

2021.3 Full Fine Old Ruby Port bottle, 1950s-60s, Josiah Stallard and Sons, Worcester Ltd. 
Josiah Stallard was a wine merchant on South Quay with cellars in Copenhagen Street, 
founded in 1808. 

Gift 

2021.4 Flour sack, collected along with contextual information about starting milling flour at 
home to help locals during shortages early in the pandemic – Covid Collection 

Gift 

2021.5 Hills and the Plain, 1940s by Paul Nash, framed watercolour from the Dudley Tooth 
collection. Dudley Tooth was part of the Arthur Tooth & Sons art dealers, who 
introduced French Impressionists to the British market and went on to work closely 
with 20th century British artists. 

Purchase, with 
support from 
Museum 
members 

2021.6 Victoria Club, 1879, print by James Abbot McNeill Whistler (1934-1903) Gift 

2021.7 Jayne Gaze, Even Pitying Hills Would Drop a Tear, artwork collected alongside 
contextual  information about artwork created to  find peace when the artist was 
unable to return to Worcester because of pandemic restrictions  - Covid Collection 

Gift 

2021.8 Letter from Boris Johnson – Stay at Home -  Covid Collection Gift 

There were no disposals from the City collection in 2021-22 

COUNTY MUSEUM COLLECTION ACQUISITIONS 2021-22 

Accession 
Number  

Object Nature of 
Acquisition 

4421 
1. Bronze screen 2. External wall lamp 3. Hand bell with ornate handle 4. Table lamp. 
All examples of Bromsgrove Guild not represented in collection 

Gift 

4422 
Yellow wedding dress, worn at a Kidderminster wedding in 1952, with excellent 
contextual information 

Gift 

4423 Void (error)  

4424 WSM72828 Archaeological archive, Dunley Rd, Evaluation, Stourport Deposition 

4425 WSM67994 Archaeological archive, Cowleigh Reservoir, Evaluation, Malvern Deposition 

4426 WSM67622 Archaeological archive, Abbey Rd Depot, Watching brief, Evesham Deposition 

4427 WSM68498 Archaeological archive, 84 High St, Broadway, watching brief Deposition 

4428 WSM67775 Archaeological archive, St Peter’s Church, Comberton, watching brief Deposition 

4429 WSM67369 Archaeological archive, The Firs, Kempsey, evaluation Deposition 

4430 WSM72809 Archaeological archive, Grove Farm, Rushwick, evaluation Deposition 

Disposal 

4146 Angela caravan 
Transferred to 
handling object 

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
Report to: Joint Museums Committee, 7th June 2022 

 

Report of: Head of Finance 

 

 

Subject: Q4 Finance Report 2021/22 

 

1. Recommendation 

 

1.1 That the Committee reviews the financial monitoring details including budget 

variances for the 4th quarter ended 31st March 2122. 

 

2. Background 

 

2.1     This report provides information on the following at Q4: 

 

 Year-end position as of 31st March 2122 and transfer to General Reserve at year end 

 Explanation of main variances 

 Other reserves 

 

3. Information  

 

3.1    Q4 Revenue Budget Performance 

         The year-end performance at Q4 is a £34,312 surplus for Worcester City hosting and £10,601 

surplus for Hartlebury Operations. This surplus has transferred to the JMS General Reserve. 

In addition, £4,982 surplus has been returned to the City Council and £4,043 to the County 

Council. 

3.2 Table 1: 2021/22 Year End Outturn as of 31st March 2122 

Worcester City Hosting Budget 2021/22  
Year End 

2021/22 
Variance 

Variance 

% 

Museum and Art Gallery 222,449 232,168 9,719 4.37% 

Commandery 104,427 103,932 -495 0.47% 

Joint Museums Collections Team 89,642 95,688 6,046 6.74% 

Joint Museums Management Team 221,421 201,169 -20,252 -9.15% 

Surplus above 5% to City   4,982 4,982  

Projects 7,187 7,187 0  0.00% 

Transfer to/from reserves -3,784             -3,784  0 0.00% 

City Surplus to General Reserve 34,312            34,312 0 0.00% 

County Surplus to General Reserve 10,601            10,601 0 0.00% 

Total Joint Museum Service 686,255 686,255 0 0.00% 

Worcester City -496,133 -496,133     

Worcestershire County Council -190,122 -190,122     

Funding -686,255 -686,255 0   

 

Page 29 Agenda Item 8



 

3.3 Table 2: Subjective Analysis 2021/22  

Worcester City Hosting Budget 2021/22  
Year End 

2021/22 
Variance 

Variance 

% 

Employees 768,736 744,242 -58,806 -7.65% 

Premises 5,970 6,667 697 11.68% 

Transport 2,150 284 -1,866 -86.79% 

Supplies & services 214,081 245,902 31,822 14.86% 

Third Party payment 0 18,264 18,264 0.00% 

Grants & Contributions -862,346 -896,121 -33,775 3.92% 

Recharges 1,000 2,876 1,876 187.60% 

Fees & Charges -83,472 -79,891 3,581 4.29% 

Other Income -87,248 -83,352 3,896 4.47% 

Transfer to/from reserves -3,784 -3,784              - 0.00% 

City Surplus to General Reserve                 34,312 34,312              -     0.00% 

County Surplus to General Reserve                 10,601 10,601              -     0.00% 

Total                    -  -              -          - 

 

 

3.4 Table 3: 2021/22 Year End Outturn as of 31st March 2122 

County Hosting 

Budget 

2021/22  

Year End 

2021/22 Variance Variance % 

Hartlebury Operations   212,021    207,978      -4,043       -1.91% 

 

3.5 Table 4: Subjective Analysis 2021/22 

County Hosting 
Budget 

2021/22  

Year End 

2021/22 
Variance Variance % 

Employees 237,174 227,074 -10,100 -4.26% 

Premises 2,550 2,167 -383 -15.02% 

Transport 4,826 3,168 -1,658 -34.36% 

Supplies & Services * 32,977 66,482 33,505 101.60% 

Income (Including Q1 income loss 

support grant) 
-65,506 -90,913 -25,407 -38.79% 

Total 212,021 207,978 -4,043     -1.91% 

 

         Hartlebury Operations is hosted by the County Council.  

 

 

 

Page 30



 

3.6 Explanation of major variances 

         The City Council hosted operations year end surplus of £34,312 has been transferred to the 

JMS general reserve at year end.  The County Council hosted year end surplus of £10,601 

has been transferred to the JMS general reserve at year end. 

 Earlier in the year savings were made by reducing spending where possible (for example on 

shop stock and collections care materials) to mitigate the risk of loss of income due to further 

lockdowns. 

 In addition, it has proven hard to recruit to vacant posts, meaning an additional saving 

although reduced capacity.  

 Whilst income is under target, some areas such as the Commandery Café, the City museums 

shops and the County Museums and Commandery events have performed very well in Q4 as 

in previous quarters, resulting in an increased surplus from previous reporting.  

* Note that in table 4, the Q4 Hartlebury ‘supplies and services’ line include the transfer of 

the surplus to City Council hosted reserve, as well as movement of external funding into the 

22-23 financial year. Actual spend over budget on supplies was £2,260.  

3.7 Transformation savings 

  

Worcester City asked for £4,000 in savings in 2021/22. The VAT status in Commandery 

admissions has been reviewed and it has been concluded that no changes can be made as 

this may affect the City’s VAT exemption threshold. However, we were able to achieve in this 

financial year because the Government temporarily reduced the VAT rate on museum 

admissions. 

 

3.8    Surplus/deficit split 

          Under the terms of the agreement, any variance to budget within 5%, will be transferred to 

the Joint Museum general reserve. 

3.9    JMS Reserve movements during Q4 funding both revenue and capital expenditure 

General Reserve 

The value of the General reserve at the end of Q4 2021/22 is £142,423.38 

 The following transfers have been made during Q4.  

 To reserve: - 

City Council year end surplus £34,312 

 Hartlebury Operations year end surplus £10,601 

 From reserve: 

 No transfers in Q4 

  Restricted Reserves 

          These funds are restricted to be used on specific projects and museum work: - 

 The value of the Project reserve £122,715.90 at Q4 

The following transfers have been made during Q4. 

Page 31



 

To reserve: - 

Japanese Masters to reserve £6,438.96 

John Ellerman underspend £5,214 

Commandery HAF Project underspend £556 

Esmee Fairbairn Glove project underspend £10,198 

Culture Recovery 3 project underspend £441.67 

From reserve: - 

No one Left Behind project £595.91 

Volunteers at Home £484.25 

Culture Recovery project £17,300 

 

 The value of the Donations reserve £11,846.27 at Q4 

 The following transfers have been made during Q4. 

 To reserve: - 

 MAG donations in year £2,259 

 Commandery donations £793 

 MAG Collection Team donations £167 

 From reserve: - 

 No transfers in Q4 

 

         Other reserves: - 

         Shop stock (ring fenced reserve) £18,000. 

 
 

Ward(s):   All 
Contact Officer: Mark Baldwin – Tel 01905 722007 

 Email – mark.baldwin@worcester.gov.uk                                       
Background Papers: None   

Page 32

mailto:mark.baldwin@worcester.gov.uk


 

 
 

Report to: Joint Museums Committee, 7th June 2022 
 

Report of: Museums Manager 
 

  
Subject: CITY MUSEUMS DEVELOPMENT 

 
1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That the Committee note the progress on planned developments at the City 
Museums. 

 
2. Background 

 
2.1 Museums Worcestershire’s Strategic Plan 2019-24 recognises the need to plan for 

significant improvement and development to the museums. Three 

agreements/leases come to an end in 2025-26, giving an opportunity to plan to 
redevelop spaces to best align the museum infrastructure to long-term priorities. 

 
2.2 Worcester City Council confirmed proposals for the allocation of its £19.6million 

Townsfunding in September 2021. This includes investment for the City’s museums: 

 Moving the Worcestershire Soldier gallery from the Art Gallery & Museum to 
the heart of the heritage venues at The Commandery. This will give the 

opportunity to modernise and renew the display and further develop its 
education potential. 

 Developing the current Worcestershire Soldier space at the Art Gallery & 

Museum to focus on the City’s important and attractive collection of British 
Impressionism and the stories it tells of the British landscape. This will form 

the first phase of redevelopment at the Art Gallery & Museum. 

3. Information  
 

3.1 The detailed Town Investment Plan that includes these developments “Heritage and 
Riverside” was approved for submission to the Department for Levelling Up, Homes 

and Communities at the Policy & Resources Committee on 22 March 2022. 

New Worcestershire Soldier Gallery at The Commandery 

3.2 The Town Investment Plan sets out £185k towards the new Worcestershire Soldier 

gallery at The Commandery, to which the Mercian Regiment Museum 
(Worcestershire) Trust and the Worcestershire Yeomanry Museum Trust will 

additionally contribute £105k of matched funding. 

3.3 The Working Group, drawn from all three members of the partnership, are working 
on the project planning together and are currently setting out a memorandum of 

understanding on partner responsibilities and a structure of partner sign-off at 
milestones.  

Page 33 Agenda Item 9



 

The partners have committed to work towards a vision for the new display for a 
newly-curated people-centred display in the right heritage location; increased 

education impact and community pride; and an enhanced offer for visitors to access 
many more resources that personalise the museum experience. 

3.4 The new display will take over much of the ground floor in the Commandery’s Canal 

Wing, and will offer visitors an object-rich display that will complement the rest of 
the Commandery’s offer and that of the nearby other heritage attractions. 

3.5 The City has a hosting agreement with each trust that ends in 2026. There are no 
benefits to any partner to create a display that could then cease in 2026, so 
discussions are underway to draft new agreements that set out the next phase of 

these relationships. 

3.6 The Mercian Regiment Museum (Worcestershire) Trust intends to lead an application 

for the new display to the National Lottery Heritage Fund and to launch a local 
fundraising campaign, concurrently to the Townsfunded project. This will enable the 

new display to maximise the potential of the two military collections, with new 
interpretation and increased access via new technology to their now extensive 
digitised resources which are of interest to family and communities historians. 

New Collection Art Gallery at the Art Gallery & Museum 

3.7 Worcester Art Gallery & Museum brings visitors to Worcester from across the country 

to visit its temporary exhibition programme. In recent years this has developed as a 
significant strength of the museum service and brought just over a million pounds of 
secondary spend to the local area in 2021-22. 

3.8 The building infrastructure and the rest of the offer has not kept pace with the 
exhibition programme. Visitors and local residents particularly ask to see Worcester’s 

excellent fine art collection for which currently there is no permanent display space. 

3.9 The fundraising charity Worcestershire Heritage, Art & Museums has been 
established and has received the first two instalments of Professor Olsen’s donation 

which in total, with Gift Aid, will give £400k restricted to further develop the art 
collection for display in a new gallery. This will be used to buy artworks that 

complement the City’s collection by adding high profile names and rounding out the 
story this collection tells. 

3.10 The new permanent art gallery will focus on the jewels of the City’s collection and 

the new purchases, which are all from a period of change in art from the late 
Victorian period to the mid twentieth century, known as British Impressionism. The 

gallery will show how famous French Impressionists influenced a new way of looking 
at art, and art was changed forever by the development of new paint chemicals, by a 
revolutionary new freedom of expression, and by the horrific experiences of the First 

World War. It will include how important this period of art was in influencing high 
profile artists today. It will also show that Worcestershire was central to this period 

of art and the well-known artists that used the county as their inspiration. The aim is 
that Worcester Art Gallery becomes as well-known for its collection of British 
Impressionism as Penlee Gallery in Penzance is for the Newlyn School, or 

Birmingham Art Gallery is for the Pre-Raphaelites, and that visitors are attracted to 
Worcester to seek out these special collection displays. 

Page 34



 

3.11 The first purchase funded by the Shirley & Rolf Olsen Art Fund is hoped to be two 
paintings by Dame Laura Knight, one a landscape and one a Gypsy portrait, offered 

by a private vendor. The charity will shortly launch its first fundraising campaign for 
these works, matching Professor Olsen’s support for their acquisition. 

3.12 £20k is set aside in the Townsfund to prepare the infrastructure following the move 

of the Worcestershire Soldier display. The new Collection Art Gallery has been 
planned as the first phase of development for the Art Gallery & Museum, with 

additional phases needed to improve facilities such as the lift, toilets, café, other 
commercial and learning spaces and upgrade the collections displays throughout. 
The City Council is currently investigating whether other Government funding could 

support these phases and development and business model options will be brought 
back to this Committee at a future meeting. 

 
4. Implications 

 
4.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications 

Commitment to develop the City museums is initially funded by the Townsfund, but 

further phases to maintain development momentum at the Art Gallery & Museum 
building still need to secure funding. 

 
4.2 Legal and Governance Implications 

Worcester City Council’s legal team are supporting legal frameworks required by the 

capital projects and the new hosting agreements with the military museum trusts. 
 

4.3 Risk Implications 
There is a risk that the ambitions of development are set back or halted by other 
priorities at the City or with their partners. This should be set against the risk that as 

facilities continue to age and deteriorate, current strong performance cannot be 
maintained. Regular reporting to the Joint Museums Committee will be continued, so 

that they can keep a close oversight of this risk. 
 

4.4 Corporate/Policy Implications 

A review of the Joint Museums Agreement (not updated since 2010) has been 
recommended to reflect these and other developments. 

 
4.5 Equality Implications 

There are no identified equality implications to the information in this report. 

Equalities impact assessments will be undertaken as part of each detailed planning 
stage. 

 
4.6 Human Resources Implications 

These are significant projects requiring staff capacity and they will be integrated into 

annual service plans for existing staff to oversee the work. Additional staff capacity 
will also be needed and budgeted as part of the project. 

 
4.7 Health and Safety Implications 

As with all capital projects, Worcester City Council will ensure that H&S is considered 

as part of the project planning and tendering of contracts. 
 

  

Page 35



 

4.8 Social, Environmental and Economic Implications 

The work outlined in this report will improve both City museums. This will enhance 
the tourism offer, promoting the economic status of the City, and will improve social 

outcomes for residents. 
 

 
 
Ward(s):   All wards 

Contact Officer: Philippa Tinsley, Tel: 01905 25371, Email: 
Philippa.tinsley@worcester.gov.uk 

Background Papers: none  
  

Page 36

mailto:Philippa.tinsley@worcester.gov.uk


 

 
 

Report to: Joint Museums Committee, 7th June 2022 
 

Report of: Museums Manager 
 

 
Subject: JOINT MUSEUMS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

 
1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That the Joint Committee note its future work programme and consider 
 whether there are any additional matters it would wish to be incorporated. 

 
2. Background 

 
2.1 In order to allow the Joint Committee to manage its future work programme, a list of 

anticipated items for 2022-3, as set out in the rolling agenda managed by Worcester 

City Council Democratic Services team, has been included in section 3 below. 

2.2 The Museums Worcestershire Strategic Plan 2019-2024 was adopted in June 2019, 

and reviewed at the Committee’s workshop in January 2022. Those discussions gave 
direction towards the work plan priorities for 2022-23, 2023-24 and onwards.  

2.3 The programme of reporting and decisions required to fulfil the Strategic Plan is 

included in the work programme set out in section 3. 

2.4 Members of the committee should consider if they would like to add any additional 

items to the work programme over the upcoming year. 

3. Information  
 

3.1 16 September 2022, at the County Museum at Hartlebury. A pre-meeting can be 
arranged for any member who would like an introduction to the site and its planned 

development. The meeting to cover: 

1) 2022-23 Quarter 1 Performance 

2) Finance 1st Quarter Monitoring Report 

3) County Museum and Collections Centre Lease Ends Property Review 
 

4) Community Collections Development  
 

5) Art Gallery Exhibition Programme 

 
6) 2023 Fees & Charges 

7) Budget 2023/24 (if required) 

8) Joint Museums Committee Work Programme 

Page 37 Agenda Item 10



 

3.2 18 November 2022, at the Art Gallery & Museum. A pre-meeting can be arranged for 
any member who would like an introduction to the site and its planned development. 

The meeting to cover: 

1) 2022-23 Quarter 2 Performance 

2) Finance 2nd Quarter Monitoring Report 

3) City Council Staff Accommodation and Art Gallery & Museum Property Review 

4) Tickenhill Trust Annual Report 

5) Joint Museums Committee Work Programme 

 

3.3 3 March 2023, at Worcester Guildhall. The meeting to cover: 

1) 2022-23 Quarter 3 Performance 

2) Finance 3rd Quarter Monitoring Report 

3) 2023-24 Service Plan 

4) Fundraising Charity’s Annual Priorities and Service Funding Planning 

5) Wellbeing Programmes Future Model 

6) Joint Museums Committee Work Programme 

 

 
 

 
 
Ward(s):   All wards 

Contact Officer: Philippa Tinsley, Tel: 01905 23371, email: 
philippa.tinsley@worcester.gov.uk 

Background Papers: none  

Page 38


	Agenda
	7 Museums Worcestershire Annual Review and Performance in 2021-2022
	Appendix 1 draft 21-22 Annual Review
	Appendix 2 Performance 2021-22

	8 Quarter 4 Finance Report 2021-2022
	9 City Museums Development
	10 Joint Museums Committee Work Programme

